
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

June 10, 2014 
7:00 P.M. 

AGENDA 

City of 

“Where Dreams Can Soar” 

The City of Bonney Lake’s Mission is to  
protect the community’s livable identity and 

scenic beauty through responsible growth 
planning and by providing accountable,  

accessible and efficient local government services. 
www.ci.bonney-lake.wa.us 

Location: Bonney Lake Justice & Municipal Center, 9002 Main Street East, Bonney Lake, Washington. 

I. CALL TO ORDER – Mayor Neil Johnson, Jr. 

A. Flag Salute 

B. Roll Call: Mayor Neil Johnson, Jr., Deputy Mayor Dan Swatman, Councilmember Mark 
Hamilton, Councilmember Donn Lewis, Councilmember Randy McKibbin, 
Councilmember Katrina Minton-Davis, Councilmember James Rackley, and 
Councilmember Tom Watson. 

C. Announcements, Appointments and Presentations:  

1. Announcements: None.

2. Appointments: None.

3. Presentations: None.

D. Agenda Modifications 

II. PUBLIC HEARINGS, CITIZEN COMMENTS & CORRESPONDENCE:

A. Public Hearings: None. 

B. Citizen Comments:  
Citizens are encouraged to attend and participate at all Council Meetings. You may address the Mayor 
and City Council on matters of City business, or over which the City has authority, for up to 5 minutes. 
Sign-up is not required. When recognized by the Mayor, please state your name and address for the 
official record. Designated representatives recognized by the chair who are speaking on behalf of a group 
may have a total of 10 minutes to speak. Each citizen is allowed to speak only once during Citizen 
Comments.  

C. Correspondence 

III. COUNCIL COMMITTEE REPORTS:

A. Finance Committee 

B. Community Development Committee 

C. Economic Development Committee 

D. Public Safety Committee 

E. Other Reports 

Page 1 of 2 Agenda Packet p. 1 of 68

http://www.ci.bonney-lake.wa.us/


City Council Agenda June 10, 2014 

IV. CONSENT AGENDA:
The items listed below may be acted upon by a single motion and second of the City Council. By simple request to
the Chair, any Councilmember may remove items from the Consent Agenda for separate consideration after the
adoption of the remainder of the Consent Agenda items.

A. Approval of Minutes: May 20, 2014 Workshop and May 27, 2014 Meeting Minutes. 

B. Approval of Accounts Payable and Utility Refund Checks/Vouchers: Accounts 
Payable checks/vouchers #68794-68832 (Including wire transfer #’s 5122014, 5222014, 
and 20140515) in the amount of $211,288.92. Accounts Payable checks/vouchers 
#68833-68851 in the amount of $1,091.68 for Utility refunds. Accounts Payable 
checks/vouchers #68852-68877 (Including wire transfer # 20140523) in the amount of 
$106,470.99. Accounts Payable checks/vouchers #68878-38881 in the amount of 
$1,282.91 for Utility refunds.  
VOIDS: Check #67937 – replaced with check #38879; Check #67938 – replaced with 
check #68880; Check #67940 – replaced with check #68881.  

C. AB14-76 – Resolution 2390 – A Resolution Of The City Council Of The City Of 
Bonney Lake, Pierce County, Washington, Authorizing A Contract With Parametrix 
Engineering For The Construction Staking Of The Church Lake Road Overlay Project. 

D. AB14-77 – A Motion Of The City Council Of The City Of Bonney Lake, Pierce County, 
Washington, To Set A Public Hearing For The 2015-2020 Six-Year Transportation 
Improvement Program On June 24th, 2014 at 7:00 p.m. Or As Soon Thereafter As 
Possible. 

V. FINANCE COMMITTEE ISSUES: None. 

VI. COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE ISSUES: None.

VII. ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE ISSUES: None.

VIII. PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE ISSUES:  None.

IX. FULL COUNCIL ISSUES:

A. AB14-59 – Ordinance D14-59 – An Ordinance Of City Council Of The City Of 
Bonney Lake, Pierce County, Washington, Amending The Land Use Matrix Codified In 
Section 18.08.020 Of The Bonney Lake Municipal Code.  

X. EXECUTIVE SESSION:  
Pursuant to RCW 42.30.110, the City Council may hold an executive session. The topic(s) and the 
session duration will be announced prior to the executive session. 

XI. ADJOURNMENT

For citizens with disabilities requesting translators or adaptive equipment for communication purposes, 
the City requests notification as soon as possible of the type of service or equipment needed. 

THE COUNCIL MAY ADD AND TAKE ACTION ON 
OTHER ITEMS NOT LISTED ON THIS AGENDA 

Page 2 of 2 Agenda Packet p. 2 of 68

p. 3

p. 15

p. 33

p. 55



 
 
Location: Justice & Municipal Center, 9002 Main Street East, Bonney Lake, Washington. 

I. CALL TO ORDER – Mayor Neil Johnson, Jr. called the workshop to order at 5:30 p.m. 

II. ROLL CALL:  
Administrative Services Director/City Clerk Harwood Edvalson called the roll. In addition 
to Mayor Johnson, elected officials attending were Deputy Mayor Dan Swatman, 
Councilmember Mark Hamilton, Councilmember Donn Lewis, Councilmember Randy 
McKibbin, Councilmember Katrina Minton-Davis, Councilmember Jim Rackley, and 
Councilmember Tom Watson. 

Staff members in attendance were City Administrator Don Morrison, Public Works Director 
Dan Grigsby, Community Development Director John Vodopich, Senior Planner Jason 
Sullivan, Administrative Services Director/City Clerk Harwood Edvalson, City Attorney 
Kathleen Haggard, and Administrative Specialist II Renee Cameron. 
 

III. AGENDA ITEMS:  
 
Mayor Johnson requested that on behalf of Planning Commission Chair Grant Sulham that 
Agenda Item G be moved to Item C 

A. Proclamation:  May 2014- Building Safety Month. 
 
Mayor Johnson read the May 2014 Building Safety Month Proclamation honoring 
the Community Development Department in keeping our City and buildings safe. 

B. Presentation: Greater Bonney Lake Historical Society.  
 
Winona Jacobsen introduced Glenn Taylor with the Greater Bonney Lake Historical 
Society (GBLHS) who presented a PowerPoint presentation for a proposal to the 
City of Bonney Lake regarding the GBLHS space at the Public Works Center and 
The House at Victor Falls.  The GBLHS proposed the recently purchased house at 
Victor Falls be used as the City’s historical museum.  No action was taken on this 
item as it was for informational purposes only. 

  

CITY COUNCIL 
WORKSHOP 

 
May 20, 2014 

5:30 P.M. 
 

MINUTES 

City of 

 
“Where Dreams Can Soar” 

The City of Bonney Lake’s 
Mission is to protect the 
community’s livable identity and 
scenic beauty through responsible 
growth planning and by providing 
accountable, accessible and 
efficient local government services. 

 
Website: www.ci.bonney-lake.wa.us  

Page 1 of 5 
Agenda Packet p. 3 of 68

http://www.ci.bonney-lake.wa.us/


City Council Workshop Minutes  May 20, 2014 

C. Discussion: AB14-67 – Resolution 2385 – Amending the 2014-2015 Planning 
Commission Work Plan. 
 
Planning Commission Chair Grant Sulham provided the Planning Commission 
Amended Work Plan.  He said the Planning Commission has reviewed the revised 
work plan and has recommended that the City Council pass Resolution 2385 
amending the current work plan to add the identified items.  Senior Planner Jason 
Sullivan responded to questions about the Work Plan.  This item was forwarded to 
the May 27, 2014 Meeting for action. 
 

D. Open Discussion 

Arts Advisory Commission.  Mayor Johnson said he received the final Applications 
for Membership to the Arts Advisory Commission from students who are involved 
in the Key Club and he hopes to finalize a panel and select appointed members in 
the next few weeks.  Councilmember Hamilton said he would like to see one of the 
first actions of the new Arts Advisory Commission recognizes existing local artists 
who have contributed their talents to the City.  Councilmember Lewis asked about 
having information and a booth during Bonney Lake Days to bring more awareness 
to the new Commission. 

Public Works Projects Updates. Deputy Mayor Swatman asked for an update on 
various City projects.  Public Works Director Grigsby provided an update on the 
following projects: 

Eastown Northern ULA Sewer System: 
• Phase I, Sewer Line from 225th Ave to Safeway sewer lift station ~ Work is 

complete. 
• Phase II, Sewer Lift Station ~ Utility lines have been placed in driveway. 

Contractor is now constructing underground concrete structures.  
• Estimated Completion Date is mid-July. 

 
Eastown Southern ULA Sewer System:  

• Design is between 30&100% 
• Easement acquisition consultant is preparing the City’s offer for the Shepard-

Morris parcel. 
• Mr. Kahne is working with the Chan family to move easement on one parcel 

from North side to South side. If this occurs prior to readiness to advertise 
construction, then the City will revise the design at Mr. Kahne’s expense. 
 

Eastown Public Works Center: 
• 225th Ave Site: Parametrix is continuing work on topographic survey, base 

map, and defining the wetland delineation. 
• 217th Ave Site (Peaking Storage Tank): ARC has prepared site utilization 

drawings for this site. 
• ARC is working on site utilization plan for 225th Avenue. 
• ARC is working on preliminary project cost estimates for these two sites. 

Page 2 of 5 
Agenda Packet p. 4 of 68



City Council Workshop Minutes  May 20, 2014 

• Other Design and Construction Costs TBD: 
o 96th Street Water Line (214th Ave to 225th Ave to 221st Ave) 
o 225th Ave & Northern Frontage Rd Sewer Lines – Connects to Sewer 

Lift Station 
 
Love/Victor Falls Property: 

Deputy Mayor Swatman asked about the Love/Victor Falls Property and 
whether it was still occupied.  City Administrator stated that the former 
owner has occupancy until Thursday, May 22nd, at which time the locks will 
be changed and Kalles Property manager will come out and do a minor 
assessment and what the fair market worth will be.  He stated a City 
employee is interested in serving as a park watchman and providing 
maintenance for the property in lieu of rent.  It could be on a one year lease 
rental agreement until the Council determines what they would like to do.  
Deputy Mayor Swatman said the City will have to work on some public 
access and liability issues on the property.  City Administrator Morrison said 
staff are reviewing the parking and geotechnical work and fencing.   

City-wide Kiosks.  Mayor Johnson said he and the City Administrator have been 
working on a City-wide kiosks so that the kiosks are freshened up and information 
contained in them will pertain to the proper locations and current community events.  
Councilmember Hamilton said he would like Council to explore rotating electronic 
signage options, would conform to the proper regulations.  He also stated there was 
a request to have a directional sign for the Greater Bonney Lake Historical Society’s 
location. 

School Recognitions.  Councilmember Lewis said he has been asked if the City will 
still be recognizing the high school students and the high school teams who have 
done well this past year and the year-end awards.  Mayor Johnson said he plans to, 
and City staff have been working to get the recognition information from the 
schools and school district in hopes of having a presentation.  He would like to have 
these presentations occur every year.   

Reed Property Update.  Councilmember Watson asked for an update on the Reed 
Property.  City Administrator Morrison said the land swap with Cascade Water 
Alliance is almost complete, which has to be completed before the boundary line 
adjustment can be completed.  He said there have been some issues with the sewer 
that the City has been working on to get resolved.  He said the GBLHS’s request for 
markers on the Reed property has been approved, and once the boundary line 
adjustments are made the markers can be put in place, as well as those for Connell’s 
Prairie monument.  He also spoke about possible removal of the encroaching 
structures to Bonney Lake Estates.  Councilmember Lewis asked if a fence will be 
installed to know where the property line is.  City Administrator Morrison said there 
is currently no money in the budget, but that would be sensible. 

  

Page 3 of 5 
Agenda Packet p. 5 of 68



City Council Workshop Minutes  May 20, 2014 

E. Review of Council Minutes: May 6, 2014 Workshop and May 13, 2014 Meeting. 
 
Council noted some minor corrections and those corrections were made.  The 
minutes were forwarded to the May 27, 2014 Council Meeting for action. 
 

F. Discussion (Pursuant to public hearing): AB14-69 – Ordinance 1481 – 
Marijuana Moratorium Extension. 
 
Deputy Mayor Swatman said during the public hearing several public comments 
were made and the City’s procedure is to discuss the public hearing and comments.  
He asked City Attorney Haggard what her legal instructions are for the Council to 
proceed.  City Attorney Haggard advised that the City needs to follow the normal 
process of discussing public testimony, if necessary, and to reach a consensus of 
moving forward.  City Administrator Morrison stated that last week’s public hearing 
extending and maintaining the marijuana moratorium under Ordinance 1481 awaits a 
recommendation from the Planning Commission.  Councilmember Hamilton asked 
if there is an expected time frame for the Planning Commission recommendation 
back to Council.  Senior Planner Sullivan and City Attorney Haggard advised the 
moratorium extension was extended to October 2014, and under the new Planning 
Commission Work Plan a recommendation back to Council is set for September 
2014.  Councilmember Watson asked about the Council’s concern with the oaths of 
office they took upholding state and federal law.  City Attorney Haggard advised that 
the Planning Commission’s recommendation will not consider Council’s specific 
concern in their recommendation.  She said the policy reasons of the Council’s final 
decision can be discussed at a Council workshop or meeting when it is brought back.  
Deputy Mayor Swatman spoke regarding the City of Marysville’s concern about the 
effect of this type of business on other local businesses.  Councilmember Minton-
Davis asked City Attorney Haggard about any challenges from any cities/ 
municipalities regarding the locations of marijuana business based on population.  
City Attorney Haggard advised that she had not heard any discussion regarding the 
Liquor Control Board’s allocation of businesses.  Other cities have been focused on 
traditional zoning authority and locals ban on marijuana businesses.  Councilmember 
Watson asked about the ability for the licensee to sell their licenses/businesses.  
Mayor Johnson said he could contact the local legislators regarding desires to deed 
their allocations to other cities.  City Attorney Haggard said the 2015 Legislative 
Session is the first opportunity that the entire law will be open for discussion and 
said now is the time to bring these issues to the attention of the legislature and to the 
Association of Washington Cities.  Councilmember Hamilton said at the Pierce 
County Regional Council meeting last week that there was discussion about smaller 
cities that have enacted laws voting to completely ban these businesses due to the 
conflict between state and federal laws.  This issue has been referred to the Planning 
Commission for a recommendation, so no action was taken. 
 

  

Page 4 of 5 
Agenda Packet p. 6 of 68



City Council Workshop Minutes  May 20, 2014 

G. Discussion: Park Board Ordinance Update (AB14-70 – Ordinance D14-70), and 
Park Work Plan. 
 
City Administrator Morrison said the Board of Park Commissioners was first 
established over 40 years ago and the ordinance does not provide much guidance on 
the roles and responsibilities of the commission or how it is to operate.  The Council 
desires to further clarify the organization, duties and responsibilities of the park 
commission.  He said this has not gone to the Park Board for review or guidance.  
Mayor Johnson said it makes sense to have clear definitions and consistency with the 
other City’s commissions.  Councilmember Lewis thought it was a well written 
document to provide direction to the Board/Commission.  Council consensus was 
to have all of the City’s Commissions consistent with their respective duties, as 
assigned by the Council.  Councilember Minton-Davis said staff did a great job on 
preparation of this item, however, she would like the language added regarding how 
they are appointed by the Mayor and must reside within the 98391 zip code, with the 
exception of a business property owner who does not actually reside in the 98391 zip 
code. Councilmember Watson said he would like it also to state that they stay on 
track with their respective work plan(s).  Councilmember McKibbin asked about 
proper language about what department oversees the Park Board/Commission.  
Councilmember Watson said he would be willing to sponsor the item and requested 
review of the revisions to the Plan.  This item will be brought back to a future 
Council Workshop for further review or the proposed revisions prior to approval by 
full Council.. 
 

IV. EXECUTIVE SESSION:  None. 

V. ADJOURNMENT: 

At 6:43 p.m., Councilmember Watson moved to adjourn the Council Meeting. 
Councilmember Lewis seconded the motion. 

Motion to adjourn approved 7- 0. 

 

   

Harwood Edvalson, MMC 
City Clerk 

 Neil Johnson, Jr. 
Mayor 

Items presented to Council at the May 20, 2014 Workshop:  
 

• Winona Jacobsen, Proposal to the City of Bonney Lake Regarding the GBLHS Space at the Public Works 
Center and The House at Victor Fall, Greater Bonney Lake Historical Society 
 
Note: Unless otherwise indicated, all documents submitted at City Council meetings and workshops are on file with 
the City Clerk. For detailed information on agenda items, please view the corresponding Agenda Packets, which are 
posted on the city website and on file with the City Clerk. 
 

Page 5 of 5 
Agenda Packet p. 7 of 68



Agenda Packet p. 8 of 68



 
Location: Bonney Lake Justice & Municipal Center, 9002 Main Street East, Bonney Lake, Washington. 

I. CALL TO ORDER – Mayor Neil Johnson, Jr. called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 

A. Flag Salute: Mayor Neil Johnson, Jr. led the audience in the Pledge of Allegiance.  

B. Roll Call: Administrative Services Director/City Clerk Harwood Edvalson called the 
roll. Elected officials attending were Mayor Neil Johnson, Jr., Deputy Mayor Dan 
Swatman, Councilmember Mark Hamilton, Councilmember Donn Lewis, 
Councilmember Randy McKibbin, Councilmember Jim Rackley, and 
Councilmember Tom Watson. Councilmember Katrina Minton-Davis was absent. 

Deputy Mayor Swatman moved to excuse Councilmember Minton-Davis. 
Councilmember Rackley seconded the motion.  

Motion to excuse Councilmember 
Minton-Davis approved 6 – 0. 

Staff members in attendance were City Administrator Don Morrison, Public Works 
Director Dan Grigsby, Assistant Engineer Andrew Fonda, Community 
Development Director John Vodopich, Senior Planner Jason Sullivan, Chief 
Financial Officer Al Juarez, Police Chief Dana Powers, Administrative Services 
Director/City Clerk Harwood Edvalson, City Attorney Kathleen Haggard, and 
Administrative Specialist II Renee Cameron. 

C. Announcements, Appointments and Presentations:  

1. Announcements: None. 

2. Appointments: None. 

3. Presentations:  

a. Proclamation: Paint the Town Purple Day, June 6th & July 18-19th Relay 
Days – American Cancer Society.   
 
Mayor Johnson read the Paint the Town Purple Day Proclamation/Relay 
Event and recognized Relay for Life Committee Chair Member Nicole 
Remington for all of the Committee’s dedication and hard work.  Ms. 
Remington thanked the Mayor and Council for their support and asked for 
support on the Relay For Life Extreme Panhandling event along Highway 
410 on June 6th and again at Bonney Lake High School on July 18th and 19th.  
She also stated that Bonney Lake will be noted as one of the top 10 events 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
 

May 27, 2014 
7:00 P.M. 

MINUTES 

City of 

 
“Where Dreams Can Soar” 

The City of Bonney Lake’s Mission is to  
protect the community’s livable identity and  

scenic beauty through responsible growth 
planning and by providing accountable,  

accessible and efficient local government services. 
 

www.ci.bonney-lake.wa.us 

Page 1 of 5 
 

Agenda Packet p. 9 of 68

http://www.ci.bonney-lake.wa.us/


City Council Meeting Minutes  May 27, 2014 

for monies raised for the American Cancer Society per capita per population 
which is very impressive. 

 

b. Presentation:  AB14-73 – 2014 Stormwater Pollution Prevention Art 
Contests Award Ceremony. 
 
Assistant City Engineer Andrew Fonda provided an explanation of the 
NPDES permit, the Stormwater Management Program, and how the art 
contest is all tied together.  He briefly described the intent of the NPDES 
Permit requirements and the messages included in the art contest calendar 
for the awards of the 2014 Stormwater Pollution Prevention Art Contests.  
Mayor Johnson presented the awards to the contest winners who were all 
from Mountainview Middle School:  Kenda Joseph, Aziah George, Kiana 
Hesler, Amaya Udager, Isabella Galindo, Kiana Morehouse, Madyson 
Kelsoe, Desirea Ward, Ashley Nall, Hannah Lewandowski, Shelby 
Welfringer, and Katie Chalich.  

 

D. Agenda Modifications:  
Mayor Johnson advised that Councilmember Lewis requested an agenda 
modification to add AWC Delegates to the Full Council Issues. 

Councilmember Watson moved to amend the Agenda to add the designation 
of AWC Delegates to the Full Council Issues.  Deputy Mayor Swatman 
seconded the motion.  

Motion to modify agenda 
approved 6 – 0. 

 

II. PUBLIC HEARINGS, CITIZEN COMMENTS & CORRESPONDENCE:  

A. Public Hearings: None 

B. Citizen Comments: 

Dan Decker, 20401 70th Street E, Bonney Lake, made a public disclosure request to 
the City Clerk, per RCW 42.56, requesting ordinances from the past ten years 
concerning the Ward System of Government.  He spoke about reinstating the Ward 
form of government before June 1, 2014.  He expressed his concern about the 
financial consequences of HR 2847, which takes effect on July 1, 2014, and how it 
will affect the American dollar. 

C. Correspondence: None. 
 

  

Page 2 of 5 
 
Agenda Packet p. 10 of 68



City Council Meeting Minutes  May 27, 2014 

III. COUNCIL COMMITTEE REPORTS:  

A. Finance Committee/Committee of the Whole: Deputy Mayor Swatman stated the 
May 27th Finance Committee was cancelled for lack of business. 

B. Community Development Committee: Councilmember Lewis said the Committee 
met on May 20th and discussed Item G of tonight’s consent agenda. 

C. Economic Development Committee: Councilmember McKibbin said the Committee 
has not met since the last report.  

D. Public Safety Committee: Councilmember Watson said the Committee has not met 
since the last report. 

E. Other Reports:  
 
White River Communities Families First Coalition Meeting:  Councilmember Lewis 
said he attended White River Communities Families First Coalition Meeting on May 
19th at the Buckley Fire Station.  He said there was a presentation from Project New 
Hope, which help the families, as well as individuals, affected by post-traumatic 
stress disorder. 
 
Buckley Youth Activities Center:  Councilmember Lewis said the Buckley Youth 
Activities Center will be opening their doors on June 13th from 2:30-6:30 and they 
are open to the entire community and advised that they are seeking volunteers 18 
year olds or younger to assist.  There was also discussion about their upcoming 
fundraisers. 
 
Pierce County Regional Council Meeting:  Councilmember Hamilton said he 
attended the Pierce County Regional Council meeting where the discussion was 
focused on the report back from the Growth Management Coordinating Committee 
trying to solve the issue of urban growth expansion and the three options that were 
presented.  Councilmember Rackley asked if it will be any easier for cities to take part 
of the County’s growth allocated to the cities.  Councilmember Hamilton advised 
that Council has the exclusive rights to the urban growth areas. 
 

IV. CONSENT AGENDA: 

A. Approval of Corrected Minutes: May 6, 2014 Workshop and May 13, 2014 Council 
Meeting. 

B. Approval of Accounts Payable and Utility Refund Checks/Vouchers:  
Accounts Payable checks/vouchers #68695-68728 (Including wire transfer #’s 
20140502, 20140505, 20140506 and 20140507) in the amount of $338,401.73. 
Accounts Payable checks/vouchers #68729-68793 (Including wire transfer #’s 
13333878 and 2014051401 in the amount of $683,594.61. 

Page 3 of 5 
 

Agenda Packet p. 11 of 68



City Council Meeting Minutes  May 27, 2014 

Accounts Payable wire transfer #2014051601 for p-card purchases in the amount of 
$47,983.82. 
VOIDS: Check #67670 – replaced with check #68782. 

C. Approval of Payroll: Payroll for May 1st – 15th, 2014 for checks #31766-31790 
including Direct Deposits and Electronic Transfers is $ 449,771.91. 

D. AB14-44 – Resolution 2371 – Authorizing Police Laptop Lease Agreement with 
Panasonic Finance Solutions. 

E. AB14-63 – Resolution 2381 - Intergovernmental Agreement with Department of 
Enterprise Services for an Investment Grade Audit. 

F. AB14-67 – Resolution 2385 – Amending the 2014-2015 Planning Commission Work 
Plan. 

G. AB14-72 – Resolution 2387 – Awarding Church Lake Road Overlay Project to Miles 
Resources. 

H. AB14-71 – Motion to Authorize Recommended Write-Off Of Delinquent Account 
Receivable Accounts. 

Councilmember Rackley moved to approve the Consent Agenda. Councilmember 
Lewis seconded the motion.  

Consent Agenda approved 6 – 0. 
 

V. FINANCE COMMITTEE ISSUES: None. 
 

VI. COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE ISSUES: None.  
 

VII. ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE ISSUES: None.  
 

VIII. PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE ISSUES: None.  
 

IX. FULL COUNCIL ISSUES:  

X. AB14-79 - A Motion to Appoint Three Voting Delegates to the AWC 2014 Annual 
Conference. 
 
A. Councilmember Lewis moved to approve the Motion to Appoint Three Voting 

Delegates to the AWC 2014 Annual Conference.  Deputy Mayor Swatman 
seconded the motion. 

 
Mayor Johnson advised that the three voting delegates will be Councilmember Lewis, 
Councilmember Watson, and Deputy Mayor Swatman.  

Motion approved 6 – 0. 
 

Page 4 of 5 
 
Agenda Packet p. 12 of 68



City Council Meeting Minutes  May 27, 2014 

XI. EXECUTIVE SESSION: None. 
 

XII. ADJOURNMENT: 

At 7:26 p.m., Councilmember Rackley moved to adjourn the Council Meeting. 
Councilmember Lewis seconded the motion. 

Motion to adjourn approved 6 – 0. 

 

   

Harwood Edvalson, MMC 
City Clerk 

 Neil Johnson, Jr. 
Mayor 

 
Items presented to Council at the May 27, 2014 Meeting:   
 Dan Decker, Citizen – Bonney Lake Mayor and Council Greetings – Written comments verbally 

presented during the Citizen Comments portion of the meeting agenda. 
 

Note:   Unless otherwise indicated, all documents submitted at City Council meetings and workshops are on file with the 
City Clerk. For detailed information on agenda items, please view the corresponding Agenda Packets, which are 
posted on the city website and on file with the City Clerk. 

Page 5 of 5 
 

Agenda Packet p. 13 of 68



Agenda Packet p. 14 of 68



City of Bonney Lake 
City Council Agenda Bill (AB) 

Department / Staff Member: Meeting/Workshop Date: Agenda Bill Number: 

PW / Andrew Fonda  June 10, 2014 AB14-76 
Agenda Item Type: Ordinance/Resolution Number: Councilmember Sponsor: 

Resolution 2390 Donn Lewis 

Agenda Subject:   Authorize the contract with Parametrix for Construction Staking on the Church Lake 
Road Overlay Project. 

Full Title/Motion:  
A Motion Of The City Council Of The City Of Bonney Lake, Pierce County, Washington, To Authorize 
The Contract With Parametrix For Construction Staking on Church Lake Road Overlay Project 

Administrative Recommendation:  

Background Summary:  
The City has the responsibility to identify Survey locations for the contractor on the Church Lake Road 
Overlay Project, and the as-built information for the City’s files.  The City has approved a 5% 
Construction Engineering ($24,555) allocation from the original construction contract toward construction 
staking per Resolution 2387. 
Attachments: Resolution 2390; Contract; Map 

BUDGET INFORMATION 
Budget Amount Current Balance Required Expenditure Budget Balance 

$478,000 
$164,000 
$300,000 
Total 

$478,000 
$164,000 
$300,000 

$355,233 
$95,760 

$138,284.80 
          $589,277.80 

$122,767 
$68,240 

$161,715.20 

Budget Explanation:  
301.032.042.595.30.63.01 Overlay Church Lake Road East $478,000 
301.002.042.595.30.63.01 Street Maintenance Overlay Program $164,000 
402.020.035.594.35.63.05 Septic Reduction Program $300,000 
Construction contract amount: $491,062.80 + 15% Contingency $73,660 + 5% Project Mgt. 
$24,555 =  Total $589,277.80 
Revenue: TIB Grant, Street CIP Fund (REET, Gas Tax, etc), Sewer SDC 

COMMITTEE, BOARD & COMMISSION REVIEW 
Council Committee: Community Development Approvals: Yes No 

Chair/Councilmember Donn Lewis X 

Committee Date: June 3, 2014 Councilmember Randy McKibbin X 

Councilmember James Rackley X 
Forwarded to: Consent Agenda: X Yes  No 

Commission/Board Review: 
Hearing Examiner Review: 

COUNCIL ACTION 
Workshop Date(s): Public Hearing Date(s): 
Meeting Date(s):  Tabled to: 

Rev. January 2014 Agenda Packet p. 15 of 68



APPROVALS 
Director: Mayor: Date Reviewed by 

City Attorney:  
(if applicable): Dan Grigsby Neil Johnson Jr. 

Rev. January 2014 Agenda Packet p. 16 of 68



RESOLUTION NO.  2390 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BONNEY 
LAKE, PIERCE COUNTY, WASHINGTON, AUTHORIZING A 
CONTRACT WITH PARAMETRIX ENGINEERING FOR THE 
CONSTRUCTION STAKING OF THE CHURCH LAKE ROAD OVERLAY 
PROJECT 

WHEREAS, the City has approved by Resolution 2387 the agreement with Miles 
Resources, Inc. for the construction of Church Lake Road Overlay Project; and 

WHEREAS, the City has the responsibility to identify Survey locations for the 
contractor on the Church Lake Road Overlay Project, and the as-built information for the City’s 
files; and 

WHEREAS, the City has approved a 5% Construction Engineering ($24,555) allocation 
from the original design contract toward construction staking per Resolution 2387; and 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Bonney 
Lake, Washington, does hereby authorize the Mayor to sign the attached agreement with 
Parametrix Engineering for the construction staking of Church Lake Road Overlay Project in the 
amount of $13,853.06 

PASSED by the City Council this 10th day of June, 2014. 

________________________________ 
Neil Johnson Jr., Mayor 

ATTEST: 

_________________________________ 
Harwood T. Edvalson, City Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

_________________________________ 
Kathleen Haggard, City Attorney 

Agenda Packet p. 17 of 68



PROFESSIONAL SERVTCES AGREEMENT
Church Lake Road Overlay - Construction Staking

THIS PRoFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT ("Agreemenr,,) iis made and enteredinto rhis day of
of Bonney Lake ("City") and parametrix. Inc. (,,Consultaru)

,2014, by and berween the Citv

The parties hereby agree as followsr

1' scope of work' The consulta.t shall perform all work and provide all materials desc¡ibedin the Scope of \(/ork set out in Exhibit A attach
reference. Such work shall be performed using f
Consultant, and shall be performed in accordan
ordinances and regulations. The Consultant sha
performance of work pursuant to this Agreemen
amendments or revisions in the detail of the wot
to constitute Extra lØork under this Agreement.

z' ownership of work Product. Documents, presentations and any other work productproduced by the consultant in performance of work under this Agreement shall be tendered tothe city upon completion of the work' and all such product shall become and remain the propertyof the city and may be-used by the city without r"stri.tion ; provided.,that any such use by the citynot directly related to the particular purposes for which the work product *", produ.ed shall bewithout any liability whatsoever to the Consultant.

3. Payment. The Consultant shall b
rendered under this Agreement pursuant
hereto and incorporated herein by this re
work performed or services rendered and for all I
incidentals necessâry to complete the work. All billings for compensation for work performedunder this Agreement shall list actual time and datesãuring which the work was performed andthe compensation shall be figured using the rates set o.rt i.r"E*hi l:it B; prouided, tl.Latpayment forwork within the scope of work (Exhibit A) shall not exceed the fee/hour estimate set our inExhibit B without written amendment to this Agreement, agreed to and signed by both parties.

Acceptance of final payment by the Consultant shall constitute a release of all claims, related topayment under this Agreement, which the Consultant may have against the City unless suchclaims are specifically reserved in writing and ffansmitted io the city by the consultanr prior toacceptance of final pa\,/ment' Final payment shall not, however, be 
"-bu, 

to any claims that the Citymay have against the consultant or to any remedies the city may pursue with respect to suchclaims.

The consultant and its sub consultants shall keep available for inspection, by the city, for a periodof three years after final payment, the cost records and accounts pertaining to this Agreement and

Agenda Packet p. 18 of 68



all items related to, or bearing upon, such records. If any litigation, claim or audit is started beforethe expiration of the three-year retention period, the records shall be retained until all litigation,
claims or audit findings involving the records have been resolved, The three-year retention period
shall commence when the Consultant receives final payment.

4' Changes in Work. The Consultant shall make all revisions and changes in the work
completed under this Agreement as are necessary to correct errors, when required to do so by theCity, without additional compensation.

5 ' Extra work' The city may desire to have the consultant perform work or render servicesin addition to or other than work provided for by the expressed intent of the Scope of \X/ork. Suchwork will be considered Extra'!7ork and will be specifieá in a wrirten supplement which will setforth the nature and scope thereof. 'VØork under 
^ 

,.rppl.-"nt shall ,rot pro.""d until authorized
to whether work is Extra Work or work alreadv covered bv

re the work is undertaken. performance of the work by the
such dispute shalr waive any craim by the consultant for

6' Employment. Any and all employees of Consultant, while engaged in the performance ofany work or seryices required by the Consultant under this Agreement, shall be considered

ny

consequence of any acts, errors, oa o-i.rio.r. år,
:ngaged, shall be the sole obligation and

responsibility of the Consultant, except as provided in Section 1Z of this agreement. The
Consultant's relation to the City shatl at all times be as an independenr.orr,.".ror.

1' Nondiscrimination and Legal compliance. consultant agrees not to discriminate against
any client, employee or applicant for employment or for services because of race, creed, color,
national origin, marital status' gender, age or handicap except for a bona fide occupational
qualification with regard to, but not limited to, the foÌlowing, employment upgrading; demotion
or transfer; recruitment or any recruitment advertisin g;layonf or ter*irratiorriåt". of pay or otherforms of compensation; selection for training; u.rd ,"ndition of services. The consultant represents
and warrants that it is in compliance with and agrees that it will remain in compliance with theprovisions of the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986, including but not limited to theRro¡i ibiting the hiring and continue ized aliens
and r and record keeping with respec employees,eligib The consultant shall include a same as thissection irì any and all contracts with sub consultants performing work required of the contractor
under this contract. The consultant agrees to indemnifu and hold th" Cii harmless from any andall liability, including nalties, the City may incur as a result of
the consultant failing ons of the Immigration Reform and control Actof 1986' consultant at if it violates this section, this Agreement may be

Agenda Packet p. 19 of 68



terminated by the city, and that consultant shall l:e barred from performing any services for thecity in the future unless and until a showing is made sarisfactory to rhe city that discriminatorypractices have terminated and that recurrence of such action is unlikely.

8' Term' This Agreement shall become effective upon the day of irs execurion by both parties,

:"1.:ldlterminate upon completion of the work and áelivery of all materials described in
DXntbtt 1\.

9 ' Termination by city. The city may terminate this Agreement at any time upon not lessthan ten (10) days written notice to consultant, subject to the city's obligation ro pay consultantin accordance with subsections A and B below.

A' in the event this Agreement is terminated by the City other than for fault on the part of theconsultant, a final payment shall be made to the Conrultant for actual cost of work complete atthe time of termination of the Agreement. In addition, the consultant shall be paid on the same
basis as above for any authorized Exfta \üork completed. No payment shall be made for any workcompleted after ten (10) days following receipt by the Consulrant of the terminarion notice, If theaccumulated payment(s) made to the Consultant prior to the termination notice exceeds the totalamount that would be due as set forth in this subsection, then no final payment shall be due andthe consultant shall immediately reimburse the city for any excess paid.

B' In the event the services of the Consultant are rerminated by the City for fault on the part ofthe consultant' subsection A of this section shall not apply. In such evenr the amounr to be paid
shall be determined by the City with consideratio., girr.; tå the actual cosrs incurred by theConsultant in performing the work to the date of te"rmination, the amount of work originally
required which was satisfactorily completed to date of termination, whether that work is in a formor of a type which is usable by the City at the time of termination, the cost to the City of
employing another person or firm to complete the work required and the time which may berequired to do so, and other factors which affect the ,r"h. å the City of the work performed at thetime of termination' under no circumstances shall payment made under this subsection exceedthe amount which would have been made if .,.,b...tion A of this secrion applied.

r to completion of the work, the original copies
)rior to termination shall become the property of
rat any such use by the City not directly related to
ct was produced shall be without anv habihw

10' Termination by consultant. consultant may terminate this Agreement only in responseto material breach of this Agreement by the City, or upon completion of the work ser out in the
Scope of \Work and any Extra 'Work 

agreed .rpo., by tÀ" p"rtier.

Agenda Packet p. 20 of 68



I 1' Applicable Law; Venue. The law of the State of 'l7ashington 
shall apply in inrerpreting

this Agreement. Venue for any lawsuit arising out of this Agreement shall be in the Superior Co.,r,
of the State of l7ashington, in and for pierce Countv.

12. lndemnification / Hold Harmless

Consultant shall defend, indemnify and hold the City, its officers, officials, employees and
volunteers harmless from any and all claims, injuries, damages, losses or suits including attorney
fees arising out of or resulting from the negligent acts, errors or omissions of the Consultant
in performance of this Agreement, except for injuries and damages caused by the sole negligence
of the City' In the event of liability for damages arising out of Uoaity injury ,o p"rror,. or damages
to property caused by or resulting from the concurrent negligence of the Consultant and the City,
its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers, the Consultant's liability, including the dury anj
cost to defend, hereunder shall be only to the extent of the Consultant's negligence, lt is further
specifically and expressly understood that the indemnification provided herein consritures the
Consultant's waiver of immunity under Industrial Insurance, Title 51 RC\ø, solely for the
purposes of this indemnification. This waiver has been murually negotiated by the parties. The
provisions of this section shall survive the expiration or termination of this Asreement.

Insurance

The Consultant shall procure and maintain for the duration of the Agreement, insurance against
claims for injuries to persons or damage to property which may arise from or in connection with
the performance of the work hereunder by the Consultant, its agents, representatives, or
employees,

A. Minimum Scope of lnsurance

consultant shall obtain insurance of the types described belowr

1, Automobile Liability insurance covering all owned non-owned, hired and
leased vehicles. Coverage shall be written on Insurance Services Office (lSO) form
CA 00 01 or a substitute form providing equivalent liability coverage. If necessary,
the policy shall be endorsed to provide contractual habllity coverage.

2. Commercial General Liability insurance shall be written on ISO occurrence
form cG 00 01 and shall cover liability arising from premises, operarions,
independent contractors and personal injury and advertising injury. The Ciry shall
be named as an insured under the Consulhnt's Commercial General Liabilirv
insurance policy with respect to the work performed for the city.

3' 'Workers' 
Compensation coverage as required by the Industrial Insurance laws

of the State of \ü/ashinston.

Agenda Packet p. 21 of 68



4. Professional Liabiliry insurance appropriare to the Consultant's profession.

B. Minimum Amounts of Insurance

Consultant shall maintain the followine insurance limits:

1. Automobile Liability insurance with a minimum combined single limit for
bodily injury and property damage of $ 1,OO0,0OO per accident.

iability insurance shall be wrirren with limits no less than
$ 1,000,000 each occurrence, $2,000,000 general aggregare.

3. Professional Liability insurance shallbe written with limits no less rhan
$1,000,000 per claim and $1,000,000 policy aggregate limit.

C. Other Insurance Provisions

The insurance policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions for
Automobile Liability, Professional Liability and Commercial General Liabiliryinsurance,

1. The Consultant's insurance coverage shall be primary insurance as respect the
City. Any insurance, selÊinsurance, or insurance pool coverage maintained by the
City shall be excess of the Consultant's insurance and shall not contribute with it.

2. The Consultant's insurance shall be endorsed to state that coverage shall not be
cancelled by either Party, except after thirty (30) days prior written norice by
certified mail, return receipt requested, has been given to the City.

D. Acceptabilitv of Insurers

Insurance is to be placed with insurers with â current A.M. Best rating of not less than ArVIl.

E. Verification of Coverage

Consultant shall furnish the City with original certificates and a copy of the amendatory
endorsements, including but not necessarily limited to the additional insured endorsement,
evidencing the insurance requirements of the Consultant before commencement of the work.

L3, Subletting or Assigning. The Consultant shall not sublet or assign any of the work covered
by this Agreement without the express written consent of the city,

14. Entire Agreement. This Agreement represents the entire Agreement between the parties.
No change, termination or attempted waiver of any of the provisions of the Agreement shall be
binding on any party unless executed in writing by authorized representatives ãf 

"".h 
parry. The

Agenda Packet p. 22 of 68



agreement shall not be modified, supplemented or otherwise affected by the course of dealing
between the parties,

15. Waiver. Failure by any party to this Agreement to enforce any provision of this Agreement
or to declare a breach shall not constitute a waiver thereof, nor shall it impair any party's right to
demand strict performance of that or any other provision of this Agreement any time thereafter.

16. Severability. If any provision of this Agreement or its applicarion is held invalid, the
remainder of the Agreement or the application of the remainder of the Agreemenr shall not be
affected.

17 . Execution and Acceptance. This Agreement may be executed in several counterparts, each
of whlch shall be deemed to be an original having identical legal effect. The Consultant hereby
ratifies and adopts all statements, representations, warranties, covenants, and agreements
contained in the supporting materials submitted by the Consultant, and does herebv accent rhe
Agreement and agrees to all of the terms and conditions thereof.

IN ìøITNESS \øHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the date first
above written.

CITY OF BONNEY LAKE CONSULTANT

Neil Johnson Jr., Mayor

Attachments:
Exhibit A, Scope of Work/Deliverables/Fee
Exhibit Br Rates

Survey Manager

By,

Agenda Packet p. 23 of 68



EXHIBIT A: SCOPE OF WORK

The Consultant shall perform the services described in the attached Scope of \Work.

Agenda Packet p. 24 of 68



SGOPE OF WORK

City of Bonney Lake

Ghurch Lake Road Overlay

Construction Staking

OBJECTIVE

Parametrix will provide survey staking for construction improvements along Church Lake Road that include
a hot mix asphalt overlay and sanitary sewer work. Pararnetrix will also prepare monument destruction
permits for approximalcly 16 monuments located within the road right-of-way.

SCHEDULE

The project is anticipated to be complete within 4 months of receipt of the Notice to proceed.

PHASE I - CONSTRUCTION STAKING

Task I - Project Management

Appronch

Parametrix will provide the tools for continuous tracking of the project schedule and budget, project
QA/QC, and status of deliverables to ensure that the project is execuìed-as expected by the City.

Assumptions

o A 4-month project schedule is assumed.

Deliverables

o Miscellaneous coffespondence to document project management issues.

o Monthly progress reports and invoices.

Task 2 - Topographic Survey

Approaclt

Based upon engineering plans titled "Church Lake Road Overlay," Parametrix surveyors will stake saw c't
limits and the limits of Planing Bituminous Pavement as defineà in the improu.¡-'"niplans. Surveyors will
also stake and grade the centerline location of sanitary sewer manholes as shown on said plans. Tiie sewer
af ignment will be staked with offsets beginning at the manhole and then at 25-foot,5g-foot, and 1gg-foot
statìons thereafter. Cut-sheets will be prepared and grades will be marked in the field. prior to any
construction' surveyors will reference all found monuments controlling the alignment of ab¡tting streets
and Church Lake Road. Reference points will be set outside of the construction limits. Location of reference
points will be noted and a monument destruction permits will be prepared and filed with the Washington
State Department of Natural Resources (DNR). Once the project ii completed, surveyors will return to the
reference points and reposition the monument location. Straddle points will be set aliowing the Contractor

C ity of Bonney Lake
Church Lake Road Overlay Cottstruction Staking
Scope oJ lVork

999-16t l-999
April 22, 201 4

Agenda Packet p. 25 of 68



to position the replacement monument at the designated point. Once the monuments have been set,
surveyors will return to the site and punch the position on the monument along with company name, Land
Surveyor license number, and date. A completion report will be prepared and filed with DNR.

Delìverables

The deliverables for this task consist of the following:

r Provide construction staking as described above.

o Provide cut-sheets for sanitary sewer runs.

. Prepare DNR Monument Destruction Permits and completion reports.

Assumptions

¡ Scheduling of survey crews will require 48 hours of notice.

o Properly corners will not be set, nor will a Record of Survey be prepared.

¡ Horizontal datum, Washington State Plane Coordinate System NAD 83/2014 South Zone.

¡ Vertical datum, North America Vertical Datum 1988 fNAVD 88).

Ciry ofBonney Lake 999_16l t-ggg
Church Lqke Road Overlay Construction Staking 2 Anrit 22. 20 I 4
Scope of ll'ork

Agenda Packet p. 26 of 68



Client: City of Bonney Lake

Project: Church Lake Road Overlay - Construction Staking

Budget Est¡mate

Construction Staking

Burdened Rates;

ProjectTotal: 513,853.06

Agenda Packet p. 27 of 68



EXHIBIT B¡ RATES

See attached Parametrix Preferred Category Billing Rates and In-House Equipment Rates.

Agenda Packet p. 28 of 68



Parametrix Preferred category Billing Rates - January 1,2014 through September 30,2014

Class¡ficat¡on Grade
Rate for
B¡lling Grade

Rate for
Billing

Classification

CADD Operator I

CADD Operator ll
CADD Operator lll
CADD Superuisor/Technical Leao
CADD Services Manager

Designer I

Designer ll
Designer lll
Designer lll
Designer lV
Sr. Designer
Sr. Designer
Sr. Designer

Engineering Technician I

Engineer¡ng Technician ll
Engineer I

Engineer ll
Engineer lll
Engineer lll
Engineer lV
Sr Engineer
Sr. Engineer
Sr Engineer
Sr. Consultant
Sr Consultant

Jr Surveyor
Surveyor I

Surveyor ll
Surveyor lll
Sr. Surveyor
Sr. Surveyor
Survey Supervisor
Sr. Surveyor for Operations
Survey Prevailing Wage'

Construction Technician I

Construction Technician ll
Construction Technician lll
Construction Technician lV
Sr Construction Techn¡cian
Construction Manager I

Construction Manager ll
Construction Manager lll
Construction lVlanager lV
Sr. Conslruction Manager
Sr. Construction Manager
Sr. Construction Manager

Division lVanager
D¡vìsion Manager
Operat¡ons Manager
Program Manager
Program Manager
Pr¡nc¡pal Consultant
Princ¡pal Consultant
Principal

Publications Specialist I

Publications Specialist ll
Sr Publications Spec¡alist
Technical Editor

I
9110

11

12

14

10
'l .l

12

13

14

15

16

17

Õ

I
10

11

12
la

't4

15

16

17

18

19

I
I
10

11

12

13t14
15

17

8/9

10

11

12

13

11

12
t?
14
'15

16

17t18

16117

18119

17 118

19

20

19

20

19t20

I

10

11

10

$80

$90
$110

$125
$1 35

$100

$110

9l 25

$140
$145

$160

$170
$1 80

$80
$90

$l 00
.$11 0

$1 25

$1 36

$145
$1 55

$170
$1 80

9190
$190

$70

$85
$eo

$110

$125
$1 50

$160

tl75

$so
$1 05

$1 20

$1 30

$140
9110
$1 30

$140
$145

$155
$1 65

$1 90

$1 95

$195

$1 95

$1 95

$1 95

$1 95

$1 95

$1 95

$85

$95
$f05
$110

Jr. Planner
Planner I

Planner ll

Planner lll
Planner lll
Planner lV
Sr. Planner
Sr. Planner
Sr. Planner

Jr. ScientisUBiologist
Sc¡entisvBiologist I

ScientisVBiologist ll
ScientisVBiologist Ill
ScientisVB¡ologist lll
ScientisVBiologist lV
Sr. ScientislBiologist
Sr. ScientisVBiologist
Sr. Sc¡entisUB¡ologist

Env¡ronmental Techn¡cian I

Env¡ronmental Techn¡cian ll
Environmental Technician lll

Hydrogeologist I

Hydrogeolog¡st ll

Hydrogeologist lll
Hydrogeologist lV
Sr. Hydrogeolog¡st
Sr Hydrogeologist
Sr Hydrogeologist

GIS Technician
GIS Analyst
Sr. GIS Analyst

Graphic Designer
Sr. Graphic Designer

Technical Aide
Sr. Technical Aide
Project Coordinator
Sr. Project Coordinator
Project Controls Specialist
Sr. Project Controls Specialist

Project Accountant
Sr. Project Accountant
Sr. Accounting Specialist
Sr Contract Administrator

Office Clerk
Receptionist
Admin Assistant
Admin Assistant
Sr Admin Assistant
Sr Adm¡n Assistant
Off¡ce Administrâtor
Sr. Office Administrator
Off¡ce Adm¡n¡strative lVlanager

Expert Witness

8/9

10

11

12

13

14

15

to

17

8/9

10

11

12
le

t9

to

17

$75

Seo

$105

$1 20

$126

$140
$1 55

$1 75

$r90

$80

$85

$110
$1r 5

$1 25

$135

$160
$1 70

$1 80

u $go
e $gs
10 $1oo

'lo $1oo
11 $105

12t13 $115
14 $130
15 $150
16 s176
17 $180

9 $go
10 $95
11 $1oo

11 $90
't2 $llo

, $ro
I $ao
I $gs
10 $1oo
11 $110
12 $120

t $gu
10 $105
10 $100
11 $125

4
Þ

o

7
I
I

10111

12t13
14t15

$55
$6s
ùoa

$70

$80
$90

$1 00

9126
$145

$350

Publicâtions Supervisor 12 $l1S
Directprojectexpensesandreproductioncostsareuitleaat
Publ¡c hear¡ng test¡mony services are billed at hourly raies plus 30%
' Prevailing wage Rates apply to construction surveying on all wash¡ngton public works projects

Jaîuaty 20, 201 4

Agenda Packet p. 29 of 68



PARAMETRIX, INC.

IN.HOUSE EQUIPMENT
GOVERNMENT (FAR COMPLTANT) RATES

Effective January 2014

Mileage

Vehicle Mileage for Employee Travel

Per Diem

Meals and Lodging for Employee Travel

CopyinglPrinting

CopiesiPrints (BA/r/ or Color)

Plotters

Bond/Mylar

Survey Equipment

Survey Equipment

Vehicle Day Rate (plus vehicle mileage)
Total Daily Rate

- See www.irs.oov for current mileage rate.

See vwrniv.gsa.gov for current per diem rates

Current IRS Rate on date Rate per mile
of travel *

NTE Current GSA Rate on Rate per day
date of travel *

$0.52 per sq ft

All other direct costs |!¡.ch.a:.p?rkjng, transportation fares, postage, delivery, reproduction costs, equipmentrental and supplies will be b¡lled at cóst wiiliout markup.

$0.20 / click Duplex $0.40 / click Duplex

Parametríx, lnc.
(Revised January 9, 201 4)

ln-House Equipment - Governmenf Rafes
( Su bj e ct to a dj u stm e nt s)

Agenda Packet p. 30 of 68



Agenda Packet p. 31 of 68



Agenda Packet p. 32 of 68



City of Bonney Lake, Washington 
City Council Agenda Bill (AB) 

 
Department/Staff Contact: 

PW / John Woodcock 
Meeting/Workshop Date: 

10 June 2014 
Agenda Bill Number: 

AB14-77 

Agenda Item Type: 
Motion 

Ordinance/Resolution Number: 
      

Councilmember Sponsor: 
Donn Lewis 

 

Agenda Subject:  Set Public Hearing for the 2015-2020 Six Year Transportation Improvement Program 
 

Full Title/Motion:   A Motion Of The City Council Of The City Of Bonney Lake, Pierce County, 
Washington, To Set A Public Hearing For The 2015-2020 Six Year Transportation Improvement 
Program For June 24th, 2014. 
 

Administrative Recommendation:        
 

Background Summary:  RCW 35.77.010 requires an annual public hearing for any updates to the local 
6 Year Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) in order to be eligible for most grant funding. 

Attachments:        
 

BUDGET INFORMATION 
Budget Amount 

N/A 
Current Balance 

      
Required Expenditure 

      
Budget Balance 

      
Budget Explanation:       
 

COMMITTEE, BOARD & COMMISSION REVIEW 
Council Committee Review: Community Development  

Date: 3 June 2014 
Approvals:  Yes No 

Chair/Councilmember Donn Lewis    
Councilmember Randy McKibbin    
Councilmember James Rackley    

 Forward to:         Consent  
Agenda: 

 

 Yes     No 

Commission/Board Review:       
Hearing Examiner Review:       
 

COUNCIL ACTION 
Workshop Date(s):        Public Hearing Date(s): June 24, 2014 
Meeting Date(s):        Tabled to Date:       
 

APPROVALS 
Director: 
Dan Grigsby, P.E. 

Mayor: 
Neil Johnson Jr. 

Date Reviewed  
by City Attorney:  
(if applicable): 

      

 
 

N:\Administrative Services\City Clerk\2014 Agendas\Agenda Assembly\2014-06-10 Mtg\AB14-77 6-Year TIP items\01_AB14-77 Motion to Set Public 
Hearing 6 Yr TIP.doc  Version Oct. 2010 Agenda Packet p. 33 of 68



Agenda Packet p. 34 of 68



RESOLUTION NO.  2391 
 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BONNEY LAKE, 

PIERCE COUNTY, WASHINGTON, ADOPTING A SIX-YEAR 
TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM (2015-2020). 

 
WHEREAS, City officials are directed by RCW 35.77.010 to adopt a 6-Year 
Transportation Program (TIP); and 
 
WHEREAS, such a plan was prepared and submitted to the Mayor and City Council; and 

 
WHEREAS, a public hearing was held on June 24th, 2014 with subsequent City 
Council discussion and direction. 

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED; 
by the City Council of the City of Bonney Lake, Pierce County, that the Six-Year 
Transportation Improvement Program for the years 2015-2020 be approved as a guide for 
the improvement of the streets of the City of Bonney Lake. 
 

 
 PASSED and adopted by the City Council this 24th day of June 2014. 

 
 

 
 

________________________________ 
      Neil Johnson Jr., Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Harwood T. Edvalson, CMC 
City Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Kathleen Haggard, City Attorney 
 
 

Agenda Packet p. 35 of 68



CITY OF BONNEY LAKE

Public Works Department

Six Year Transportation Improvement program
(20rs-2020)

Project categories

Category A - Intersection Improvements ($3,490,000)
Traffic signalization and charnelization improvements at intersections. To be funded by
city TIF/REET/Gas Tax/COR funds, WSDOT, federal or state grant funding, and/or
developer mitigation.

Category B - Roadway Major Improvements ($30,g46,300)
Major roadway improvements, for Collector and Minor Arterial Classified roadways
including right of way acquisition when required. To be funded by city TIF/REET/Gas
TaxlCOR funds, state or federal grant/loan funding, developer mitigation, and/or
WSDOT participation. Projects often combine improvements for environmental
compliance, storm drainage, domestic water and sanitary sewer system extensions,
roadway widening, bridge, curb, gutter, sidewalks, traffic signalization, lane
channelization, street lighting, landscaping, street trees, etc. Also included will be a
community involvement element.

The project phases are as follows:
Pre-Design/Planning by city or city consultant.
Environmental Permitting by city or city consultant.
Right-oÊWay acquisition by consultant.
Design that produces construction plans and specifications by city consultants.
Advertise and Award construction project by the city.
Construction by contractor.
Construction Management by the city.
Project Completion, Closeout, and Acceptance by the city.

Roadway maintenance and/or reconstruction of existing pavement with minor drainage,
shoulder improvements, signing and channelization, and new sidewalks. project funded
by city, state/federal grant funds, and potential developer mitigation

Category D - Transportation Studies ($175,000)
Transportation or traffìc studies including computer traffic modeling and Comprehensive
Plan sub Area Planning to be funded by city and performed by conzultants.

Category E - Trail Projects ($4,900,000)
Non-motorized transportation facilities including walking trails, bicycle routes, and
sidewalk facilities to the enhance pedestrian and bicycle safety and mobility.

Page I of6 }l4ay 28,2074
Agenda Packet p. 36 of 68



No. Project description Funding Source

A - 1 SR 410 at Veterans Memorial Drive Dev/TIF/Grant
(Ph 2 - signal upgrade and additional turn lanes.
See project B-l)

A - 2 SR 410 at225rhAvenue E
(New signal and additional turn lanes)

A - 3 199th Ave at 109th Street E
(New signal and additional turn lanes; Entrance to BLHS
and Mountain View Middle School)

Six Year Transportation Improvement Program

Developer

Developer

Dev/TIF $ 520,000

Dev/TIF/!VSDOT $ 750.000

Estimated Cost

$ 750,000

$ 750,000

$ 250,000

$ 580,000

$ 410,000

$ 3.490.000

A - 4 Veterans Memorial Drive at Angeline Rd E
(New signal and additional turn lanes)

A - 5 SR 410 at2l4thAve E
(Signal upgrade and additional left turn lane on
SR 410, 2l4th Ave. E widening. See B-4, B-5)

A - 6 Church Lake Rd at West Tapps H\ryY E
(New signal and additional turn lanes)

^-7 
SR410 atl92"d AveE. Phase 1-A
(New signal arm and additional turn lanes on
south side of intersection. Walmart entrance off
l92nd Ave. will be removed.)

Category órAtt Total

Dev/TIF

TIF/Dev/Grant

Page 2 of6 May 28,2014
Agenda Packet p. 37 of 68



Six Year Transportation Improvement Program

No. Project description

B - 1 SR 410 & Veterans Memorial Drive

Funding Source Estimated Cost

Dev/TlF/Grant $4,150,000
(Phase 2 - additional tum lanes on SR 410 and widen to 5 lanes on vMD with project A-l)

B -2 186th Ave. Corridor Improvements Dev/City
(ROW, sidewalks, stormwater, road widening to city stds)

B - 3 Myers Road from SR 410 to 81.1 Street City
(Install 1,000 ft of soldier pile reraining wall with sidewalk)

B - 4 2l4th from SR 410 to 96th St E Dev/TIF/City
(V/iden to 5 lanes, upgrade signal at 961h St. - with project A-5)

B - 5 2l4tt'from SR 410 to Southern City Limits Dev/TIF/Citv
(Widen to 5 lanes with project A-5)

B - 6 216th Avenue-North Side - Eastown

B -7 216th Avenue - South Side - Eastown

B - I 219th Avenue - South Side - Eastown

B - 9 221't Avenue - North Side - Eastown

B - 10 221't Avenue - South Side - Eastown

B - 11 225th Avenue - North Side - Eastown

B - 12 225t1' Avenue - South Side - Eastown

B - 13 225th Ave. Ct. - South Side - Eastown

B - 14 226th Avenue - North Side - Easrown

B - 15 226th Avenue - South Side - Eastown

B - 16 229rh Avenue - North Side - Eastown

B - 17 Entwhistle Road - South Side - Eastown

City

City

City

City

City

City

City

City

City

City

City

City

$1,900,000

$2,ooo,ooo

$1,350,000

$2,500,000

$617,100

$ 198,000

s1,221,000

$403,300

$1,148,400

$990,000

$231,000

$ 1,102,500

$ 1,496,900

$330,000

$ 1,436,700

$ 1,871 ,400

Page 3 of6 May 28,2074
Agenda Packet p. 38 of 68



B - 18 Northern Frontage Road - Eastown

B - 19 Southem Frontage Road - Eastown

B - 20 Northern Publie Road Storrnwater Facility

B -21 Southern Public Road Stormwater Facility

Category "B" Total

$3,400,000

$2,500,000

$1,000,000

$1,000,000

$30.846.300

Agenda Packet p. 39 of 68



Year
20ls
Street Reconstruction Program
Street Overlay Program
Street Chip Seal Program (Seven Miles)
Sidewalk Improvements

2016
Street Reconstruction Pro gram
Street Overlay Program
Chip Seal Program (Seven Miles)
Sidewalk Improvements

2017
Street Reconstruction Program
Street Overlay Program
Street Chip Seal Program (Seven Miles)
Sidewalk Improvements

2018
Street Reconstruction Pro gram
Street Overlay Program
Street Chip Seal Program (Seven Miles)
Sidewalk Improvements

2019
Street Reconstruction Pro gram
Street Overlay Program
Street Chip Seal Program (Seven Miles)
Sidewalk Improvements

2020
Street Reconstruction Program
Street Overlay Program
Street Chip Seal Program (Seven Miles)
Sidewalk Improvements

Category t'C" Total

Six Year Transportation fmprovement program

ion, :rsphalt clvcrl¡t'. or. chiu st':¡l

Project description Funding Source

City
City
City
City

City
City
City
City

City
City
City
City

City
City
City
City

City
City
City
City

City
City
City
City

Estimated Cost

$109,000
$109,000
s218,000
$109,000

$112,000
$112,000
$225,000
$112,000

$ 1 15,000
$115,000
s232,000
$ 1 15,000

$ 1 18,000
$1 18,000
$239,000
$ 1 18,000

$121,000
$121,000
$246,000
$121,000

$124,000
$124,000
$253,000
$124,000

$ 3.510.000

Page 5 of6 }l4ay 28,2014
Agenda Packet p. 40 of 68



Year

2018

Six Year Transportation Improvement Program

Project description Funding Source

Update City Transportation Plan City
(update City wide demographics, traffìc counts, and Traffic Model)

Category t'D" Total

Funding Source

City/Grant
CitylGrant
City/Grant

Estimated Cost

$ 175,000

$17s.000

Estimated Cost

$300,000
$2,100,000
$2,500,000

Project description

Fennel Creek Trail Project
Trailhead to Cimmer property
Cimmer Property to Willowbrook
Willowbrook to Victor Falls

Category 6óEtt Total

TOTAL PROGRAM COST

$4.900.000

$42.921.300

Page 6 of6 May 28,2014
Agenda Packet p. 41 of 68



B-1

A-1

AMPM

Dairy
Queen

Bonney
Lake
Auto

Bonney
Lake

Tavern

?u@410

SR410 E

18
2N

D 
AV

 E

181ST AV E

VETERANS MEMORIAL DR E

Six Year Transportation Improvement Program

May 28, 2014100
Feet I

City of Bonney Lake

Map 1

A-1
SR410 at 
Veterans Memorial Drive

Dev/TIF/Grant
$750,000
Phase 2 - Signal upgrade
and additional turn lanes.
With Project B-1

B-1
SR410 and
Veterans Memorial Drive

Dev/TIF/Grant
$4,150,000
Phase 2 - Additional
turn  lanes on SR 410
and widen to 5 lanes
on VMD. With Project A-1

SR410 at Veterans Memorial Drive

Agenda Packet p. 42 of 68



A-2

Bowen
Auto

E A S T O W N

?u@410

Compass
Pointe

SR410 E 225TH
AVCT E

Six Year Transportation Improvement Program

May 29, 2014300
Feet I

City of Bonney Lake

Map 2

A-2
SR410 at
225th Avenue Court

Developer
$750,000
New signal and
additional turn lanes

SR410 at 225th Avenue Court

Bonney Lake City Limits

Agenda Packet p. 43 of 68



Bonney Lake
High School

Mountain View
Middle School

A-3

104TH ST E

19
9T

H A
VC

T E

19
7T

H A
V E

19
8T

H A
V E

20
0T

H A
VC

T E

201ST AV E
19

8 T
H

AV
CT

E

107TH STCT E

105TH ST E
19

9T
H

AV
E113TH ST E

BROOKSIDE DR E

201ST AVCT E

Six Year Transportation Improvement Program

May 28, 2014500
Feet I

City of Bonney Lake

Map 3

A-3
199th Avenue Court at
109th Street

Developer
$250,000
New signal and additional
turn lanes. Entrance to
Bonney Lake High School
and Mountain View
Middle School

199th Avenue Court at 109th Street

Bonney Lake City Limits

Agenda Packet p. 44 of 68



A-4

B O N N E Y
L A K E

AN
GE

LIN
E R

D
E

SUMNER-BUCKLEY HWY E

CHURCH LAKE RD E

19
2N

D AV
E

VE
TE

R A
NS

ME
MO

RI
AL

DR
E

Six Year Transportation Improvement Program

May 29, 2014300
Feet I

City of Bonney Lake

Map 4

A-4
Veterans Memorial Drive
at Angeline Road

Dev/TIF
$520,000
New signal and
additional turn lanes

Veterans Memorial Drive at Angeline Road

Bonney Lake City Limits

Agenda Packet p. 45 of 68



Home
Depot

Safeway

Les
Schwab

A-5

B-4

B-5

F
F

?u@410

21
4T

H 
AV

 E

SR410 E

96TH ST E

101ST ST E

21
6T

H 
AV

 E

Six Year Transportation Improvement Program

May 28, 2014300
Feet I

City of Bonney Lake

Map 5

A-5
SR410 at
214th Avenue

Dev/TIF/WSDOT
$750,000
Signal upgrade and
additional left turn lane
on SR 410, 214th Ave
widening. With Projects
B-4 and B-5

B-4
214th Avenue
from SR410
to 96th Street

Dev/TIF/City
$1,350,000
Widen to 5 lanes,
Upgrade signal at
96th Street. With
Project A-5

B-5
214th Avenue
from SR410 
to Southern City Limits

Dev/TIF/City
$2,500,000
Widen to 5 lanes.
With Project A-5

SR410 at 214th Avenue

Bonney Lake
City Limits

Agenda Packet p. 46 of 68



A-6

Allan Yorke Park
Overflow Parking

Ridge at
Lake Tapps

CHURCH LA
KE

DR E
WE

ST
 TA

PP
S H

WY
 E

CHURCH LAKE RD E

20
2N

D 
AV

 E

76TH STCT E

20
1S

T A
VC

T E

20
1S

T A
V 

E

77TH STCT E

20
2N

D
AV

C T
E

80TH STCT E

Six Year Transportation Improvement Program

May 28, 2014300
Feet I

City of Bonney Lake

Map 6

A-6
Church Lake Road
at West Tapps Highway

Dev/TIF
$580,000 
New signal and
additional turn lanes

Church Lake Road at West Tapps Highway

Bonney Lake City Limits

Agenda Packet p. 47 of 68



A-7

Junction
192

Target

Walmart

Sandy's
Corner

Applebee'sRed
Robin

Pink
Elephant
Car Wash

?u@410

19
2N

D
AV

E

SR410 E

19
2N

D 
AV

 E

SR410 E

Six Year Transportation Improvement Program

May 28, 2014300
Feet I

City of Bonney Lake

Map 7

A-7
SR410 at 192nd Avenue

TIF/Dev/Grant
$410,000
Phase 1-A of 192nd
Avenue Corridor. New
signal arm and additional
turn lanes on south
side of intersection.
Closure of Wal-Mart
Entrance.

SR410 at 192nd Avenue

Agenda Packet p. 48 of 68



Hillcrest
Estates

B-3

Stor-N-Lok

Lakes Place
Office Building

1,000 Feet of
Soldier Pile

Retaining Wall
and Sidewalk

Forest View
Apartments

Ascent
Park

?u@410

MYERS RD E

179TH AV E

SR410 E

81ST ST E

SR410 HWY E SR410 HWY W

181ST AV E

85TH ST E

180TH AVC
T E

82ND ST E

Six Year Transportation Improvement Program

May 28, 2014300
Feet I

City of Bonney Lake

Map 8

B-3
Myers Road from
SR410 to 81st Street

City
$2,000,000
Install 1,000 ft of
soldier pile retaining
wall with sidewalk to
address erosion.

Myers Road from SR410 to 81st Street

Agenda Packet p. 49 of 68



Justice &
Muncipal Center Bonney Lake

Library

Public
Safety

Building

Post
Office

50'

50'

50'

40'

40'

30'

B-2

#

Renwood

Bonney
Lake

Grocery

Pistol
Annie's

Community
Garden

Youngberg

Gunn

Lions-4-Kids

F U T U R E
C I V I C

C A M P U S

RAINIER
PLAZA CONDO

PHASE II

RAINIER
PLAZA

CONDO PH I

BONNEY LAKE
OFFICE

CONDOMINIUM

GRANDVIEW AT
BONNEY LAKE

FIR
RETREAT

BONNEY
LAKE

CENTRAL

MCDONALD
FRUIT

TRACTS

LO
CU

ST
AV

 EMAIN
ST E

18
6T

H 
AV

 E 88TH ST E

MAIN ST E

18
8T

H A
V E

18
6T

H 
AV

 E

MA
IN

 S
T E

88TH ST E

18
8T

H 
AV

 E

MA
IN

 S
T E

90TH ST E

89TH ST E

VETERANS MEMORIAL DR E

Six Year Transportation Improvement Program

I300
Feet

May 28, 2014

186th Avenue - 88th Street - 188th Avenue Corridor Improvements

Map 9

Proposed Right Of Way Width

Current Right of Way Width

City of Bonney Lake

Tax Parcels

Right of Way Expansion
Boundary

B-2
186th Ave Corridor Improvements

Dev/City
$1,900,000
ROW, sidewalks, stormwater,
road widening to City standards

Agenda Packet p. 50 of 68



SR410

96TH STREET

21
4T

H 
AV

E

23
3R

D 
AV

E

ENTWHISTLE ROAD

106TH STREET

WSU Forest
590

Housing
Units

Peaking Storage
Water Tank

SOUTH
PRAIRIE ROAD

NORTH
FRONTAGE ROAD225TH

AVE

22
1S

T A
VE

SOUTH FRONTAGE ROAD

21
9T

H 
AV

E

22
9T

H A
VE

101ST
STREET

NORTH
FRONTAGE ROAD

Woodside
Manor

Clearwater

East
Pointe

23
4T

H 
AV

E

106TH
STREET

21
6T

H 
AV

E

21
4T

H 
AV

E

102ND
STREET

à

à

à

à

Mazatlan

Safeway

Home
Depot

Left Turns
Allowed

Future
Traffic
Signal

Future
Public Works

Center 23
0T

H 
AV

E

92ND STREET 23
4T

H 
AV

E

22
1S

T A
VE

21
6T

H 
AV

E

107TH STREET

22
9T

H 
AV

E

Fennel Creek

Fennel Creek

102ND STCT

SR410

SR410

102ND STREET
22

5T
H 

AV
CT

22
6T

H 
AV

E

Mountain
Creek

Estates
96

Homes

Rite-Aid

Sunset
Used Cars

Centennial
Storage

91ST STREET

94TH STREET

225TH
AVE

91ST STREET

94TH
STREET

100THSTCT22
7T

H
ST

CT
103RD STCT

22
8T

H
AV

CT

23
0T

H 
AV

E

22
7T

H 
AV

E
22

6T
H 

AV
E

106TH

STREET22
8T

H 
AV

CT

22
3R

D 
AV

E

22
4T

H 
AV

E
22

4T
H 

AV
E

B-6
B-7

B-8

B-9

B-10

B-11

B-12

B-13

B-14

B-15

B-16

B-17

A

A

A

A

A

A

A

A

A

A

A

A

23
1S

T
AV

E

Firview
Manor

Quiet
Meadow

B-18A

B-19A

B-20

B-21

?u@410

?u@410

Six Year Transportation Improvement Program

I

May 28, 2014

Fennel Creek

Eastown Future Public Roads

Bonney Lake City Limits

Future Public Road
with TIP Project Number
Future Private Road

Tax Parcel

Building

0 1,000
Feet

Existing Paved Road

B-6 216th Ave - North Side
B-7 216th Ave - South Side
B-8 219th Ave - South Side
B-9 221st Ave - North Side
B-10 221st Ave - South Side
B-11 225th Ave - North Side
B-12 225th Ave - South Side
B-13 225th AvCt - South Side
B-14 226th Ave - North Side
B-15 226th Ave - South Side
B-16 229th Ave - North Side
B-17 Entwhistle Rd - South
B-18 North Frontage Road
B-19 South Frontage Road
B-20 Northern Public Road
Stormwater Facility
B-21 Southern Public Road
Stormwater Facility

Number and location of
Eastown Public Road
stormwater ponds will be
determined with completion
of the Eastown Stormwater
Master Plan

Agenda Packet p. 51 of 68



3
3

3

33

3

3

3

33 333

3 3
3

3

3 3

3

33

3

3

3
3

3
3

3

3

3

3
3

3

3

3
33
3

3
3
3

3

33

3

3

3

3

33

33

3

3

33
3

3

3

3 3

3

3
3

3

3

3
3

3

3

3

&.

&.&. &.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.
&.

&.
&.

&.

&. &. &. &.&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&. &.

&.&.

&.

&.&.

&.

&.

&.

")

")

")

Victor Falls
Elementary

Victor
Falls

RHODES LAKE RD E

Fe
nn

el C
ree

k
18

5T
H 

AV
 E

PANORAMA BLVD

B O N N E Y
L A K E

M A N O R

RHODES LA
KE RD E

V I C T O R
F A L L S

T E R R A C E

111TH ST E

109TH STCT E

111TH ST E

113TH ST E

115TH STCT E

Safe Routes
to School Trail

Fe
nn

el 
Cr

eek

Future Fennel
Creek Trail

18
4T

H AV
PL E

Spring
Transmission

Lines

VAN DYK ST

RHODES LAKE RD E
Ken Love
Property

114TH ST E

Fennel Creek

A
N

G
E

LI
N

E
 R

D
 E

Pump
Station

Spring
Collection

Box

BONNEY
LAKE

UNINCORPORATED
PIERCE COUNTY

BONNEY
LAKE

UNINCORPORATED
PIERCE COUNTY

BONNEY
LAKE

Falling Water
Community
Drain Field

Spring
Collection

Box

Spring
Collection

Box

30' Water
Easement

Victor Falls
Estates

Existing Fennel
Creek Trail

BONNEY
LAKE

WILLOW BROOK PUD PH 1

ASHTON WOODS

FALLING WATER - DIVISION 1 - PHASE 1

FALLING WATER DIV 3, PH 1 PDD

SANDHILL ESTATES

WOODBRIAR VILLAGE

FENNEL RIDGE

FENNEL RIDGE DIV 2

WOODLAND MEADOWS

PANORAMA HEIGHTS PUD PH 1

RHODES LA
KE RD E

AN
GE

LIN
E 

RD
 E

FA
LL

ING
 W

AT
ER

 BLV
D E

181ST AV E

17
9T

H 
AV

CT
 E

182ND AV E

123RD ST E

18
8T

H 
AV

CT
 E

121ST ST E

185TH AV E

18
3R

D A
VC

T E

122ND ST E

124TH ST E

WHISKEY RUN RD E

19
0T

H 
AV

CT
 E

18
1S

T A
VC

T E

121ST ST E
19

0T
H 

AV
CT

 E

VICTOR FALLS TERRACE

BONNEY LAKE MANOR

WHITEHORSE JUNCTION

0 100 200 300 400 500

Feet
I

Victor Falls Springs

May 21, 2014

Featuring Fennel Creek
and Victor Falls Estates

City of Bonney Lake

Fennel Creek

Bonney Lake City Limits

City-Owned
Property

Existing Fennel Creek Trail

Future Fennel Creek Trail

Safe Routes to School

Spring Collection Box

Valve

Gate Valve

Water Main

Victor Falls
Estates

3

&.

")

Spring Transmission
Line

Easement

Agenda Packet p. 52 of 68



#*

Bonney Lake
High School

D O W N T O W N

19
2N

D
 A

V
 E

SUMNER-BUCKLEY HWY E

104TH ST E

M
A

IN
 S

T 
E

SKY I
SL

AND DR E

Historic
Kelley Farm

Cimmer Property
Fennel Creek

Trailhead

Historic
Finnell's
Prairie

AN
GEL

IN
E 

RD E
Fe

nn
el C

ree
k

Fennel Creek
Trail Six Year
TIP Section

Proposed
PC Futures

Parcel

WSDOT
Mitigation
Parcels

Copperfield
Fennel Creek

Trail Easement

C O P P E R F I E L D
E S T A T E S

Historic
Naches

Trail

%

%

S K Y
I S L A N D

G A R D E N
M E A D O W S

C R Y S T A L
M E A D O W S

B R O O K S I D E

W A L - M A R T

M A R K E T  A T
L A K E  T A P P S

BR
O

O
KSID

E D
R

 E

F E N N E L
C R E E K

E S T A T E S

AN
G

EL
IN

E 
R

D
 E

19
2N

D
 A

V
 E

19
2N

D
 A

V
 E

M I D T O W N

W I L L O W
B R O O K

A
N

G
E

LI
N

E
 R

D
 E

104TH STCT E

101ST ST E

19
2N

D AV E

99TH STCT E

T A R G E T

J U N C T I O N
1 9 2

18
3R

D A
V 

E

97TH ST E

SKY ISLAND DR E

G R A N D V I E W

18
9T

H
 A

V
C

T 
E

?u@410

?u@410

106TH ST E

103RD ST E

R E N W O O D Future Fennel
Creek Trail

100TH STCT E

K E L L Y
C R E E K

K E L L Y
C R E E K

H E I G H T S

S P I R A E A
G L E N

J O H N S O N
P R O P E R T Y

Justice &
Municipal

Center

95TH ST E

18
8T

H
 A

VC
T 

E

18
4T

H
 A

V
 E

A N G E L I N E
H E I G H T S

94TH STCT E

C E D A R
H E I G H T S

Transit
Center

18
0T

H
 A

V 
E

95TH ST E

192nd Ave
Corridor
Project

TO
SAFE

ROUTESA

94TH ST E

19
6T

H
 A

V
 E

90TH ST E

18
6T

H
 A

V
 E

101ST STCT E

105TH ST E

19
1S

T 
AV

C
T 

E

0 250 500 750 1,000

FeetI

Fennel Creek Trail

July 22, 2013

Crystal Meadows to the Cimmer Property

Legend
Fennel Creek

Bonney Lake City Limits

Fennel Creek Trail TIP Section

#* Fennel Creek Trailhead

WSDOT Property

City-Owned Property

Historic Naches Trail

Fennel Creek Trail
Easements

Six Year Transportation Improvement Program

% Project Start/End

City of Bonney Lake

Existing Fennel Creek Trail
Future Fennel Creek Trail

Agenda Packet p. 53 of 68



3
3

3

33

3

3

3

33 333

3 3
3

3

3 3

3

33

3

3

3
3

3
3

3

3

3

3
3

3

3

3
33
3

3
3
3

3

33

3

3

3

3

33

33

3

3

33
3

3

3

3 3

3

3
3

3

3

3
3

3

3

3

&.

&.&. &.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.
&.

&.
&.

&.

&. &. &. &.&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&.

&. &.

&.&.

&.

&.&.

&.

&.

&.

")

")

")

Victor Falls
Elementary

Victor
Falls

Fe
nn

el C
ree

k
18

5T
H 

AV
 E

RHODES LA
KE RD E

111TH ST E

109TH STCT E

111TH ST E

113TH ST E

115TH STCT E

Safe Routes
to School Trail

Fe
nn

el 
Cr

eek

Future Willowbrook
to Victor Falls Springs

Trail

18
4T

H AV
PL E

Spring
Transmission

Lines

VAN DYK ST

RHODES LAKE RD E
Ken Love
Property

114TH ST E

Fennel Creek

A
N

G
E

LI
N

E
 R

D
 E

Pump
Station

Spring
Collection

Box

BONNEY
LAKE

UNINCORPORATED
PIERCE COUNTY

BONNEY
LAKE

UNINCORPORATED
PIERCE COUNTY

BONNEY
LAKE

Falling Water
Community
Drain Field

Spring
Collection

Box

Spring
Collection

Box

30' Water
Easement

Victor Falls
Estates

Existing Fennel
Creek Trail

BONNEY
LAKE

WILLOW BROOK PUD PH 1

ASHTON WOODS

FALLING WATER - DIVISION 1 - PHASE 1

FALLING WATER DIV 3, PH 1 PDD

SANDHILL ESTATES

WOODBRIAR VILLAGE

FENNEL RIDGE

FENNEL RIDGE DIV 2

WOODLAND MEADOWS

PANORAMA HEIGHTS PUD PH 1

RHODES LA
KE RD E

AN
GE

LIN
E 

RD
 E

FA
LL

ING
 W

AT
ER

 BLV
D E

181ST AV E

17
9T

H 
AV

CT
 E

182ND AV E

123RD ST E

18
8T

H 
AV

CT
 E

121ST ST E

185TH AV E

18
3R

D A
VC

T E

122ND ST E

124TH ST E

WHISKEY RUN RD E

19
0T

H 
AV

CT
 E

18
1S

T A
VC

T E

121ST ST E
19

0T
H 

AV
CT

 E

VICTOR FALLS TERRACE

BONNEY LAKE MANOR

WHITEHORSE JUNCTION

0 100 200 300 400 500

Feet
I

Willowbrook to
Victor Falls Springs Trail

May 29, 2014

City of Bonney Lake

Fennel Creek

Bonney Lake City Limits

City-Owned
Property

Existing Fennel Creek Trail

Future Fennel Creek Trail

Safe Routes to School

Spring Collection Box

Valve

Gate Valve

Water Main

Victor Falls
Estates

3

&.

")

Spring Transmission
Line

Easement

Agenda Packet p. 54 of 68



  Version Oct. 2010 

City of Bonney Lake, Washington 

City Council Agenda Bill (AB) 
 

Department/Staff Contact: 

Community Development /  

Jason Sullivan - Senior Planner 

Meeting/Workshop Date: 

10 June 2014 
Agenda Bill Number: 

AB14-59 

Agenda Item Type: 

Ordinance 
Ordinance/Resolution Number: 

D14-59 
Councilmember Sponsor: 

Donn Lewis 
 

Agenda Subject:  Amendments to the land use matrix related to senior housing. 
 

Full Title/Motion:   An Ordinance  Of City Council Of The City Of Bonney Lake, Pierce County, 

Washington, Amending The Land Use Matrix Codified In Section 18.08.020 Of The Bonney Lake 

Municipal Code . 
 

Administrative Recommendation:        
 

Background Summary:  The proposed amendment would separate Assisted Living Facilities from 

Continuing Care Communities and Nursing Homes on the Land Use Matrix and allow Assisted Living 

Facilities within the Downtown Commercial and Downtown Mixed Use zoning classifications.  This 

amendment would ensure consistency between the City’s development regulations codified the Bonney 

Lake Municipal Code and the housing policies adopted in the Bonney Lake Comprehensive Plan, which 

directs the City to support the development of senior housing projects in the downtown.  The Revised 

Code of Washington (RCW) 36.70A.130(1)(d) and Washington Administrative Code (WAC) 365-196-

500(3) both require that the City’s comprehensive plan and the implementing development regulations 

are consistent.  The proposed amendments would remove the inconsistency between the documents and 

bring the City into compliance with state law. 

Attachments:  Ordinance D14-59 and Planning Commission Recommendation Memo 

 
 

BUDGET INFORMATION 

Budget Amount 

n/a 
Current Balance 

      
Required Expenditure 

      
Budget Balance 

      

Budget Explanation:       
 

COMMITTEE, BOARD & COMMISSION REVIEW 

Council Committee Review:            

Date:       

Approvals:  Yes No 

Chair/Councilmember          

Councilmember          

Councilmember          

 Forward to:         Consent Agenda:  Yes     No 

Commission/Board Review: 21 May 2014 

Hearing Examiner Review:       
 

COUNCIL ACTION 

Workshop Date(s):  3 June 2014 Public Hearing Date(s):       

Meeting Date(s):        Tabled to Date:       
 

APPROVALS 

Director: 

JPV 
Mayor: 

      

Date Reviewed  

by City Attorney:  
(if applicable): 

      

 

Agenda Packet p. 55 of 68



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

 

 

Agenda Packet p. 56 of 68



ORDINANCE D14-59 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BONNEY LAKE, PIERCE 

COUNTY, WASHINGTON, AMENDING THE LAND USE MATRIX CODIFIED IN 

SECTION 18.08.020 OF THE BONNEY LAKE MUNICIPAL CODE  

 

WHEREAS, the City Council desires to amend the Land Use Matrix to establish separate 

rows for Nursing Facilities, Continuing Care Communities, and Assisted Living Facilities, as 

these are different uses as defined by the North American Industry Classification System 

(NAICS) but are current contained on the same row in the Land Use Matrix; and  

 

WHEREAS, Nursing Facilities are defined in NAICS 623110 as establishments primarily 

engaged in providing inpatient nursing, personal care, and rehabilitative services for an extended 

period of time to individuals requiring nursing care by a permanent core staff of registered or 

licensed practical nurses; and 

 

WHEREAS, Continuing Care Communities are defined in NAICS 623311 as 

establishments primarily engaged in providing a range of residential settings with meals, 

housekeeping, social, leisure, and other services available to assist residents in daily living with 

on-site nursing care facilities; and 

 

WHEREAS, Assisted Living Facilities are defined in 623312 as establishments primarily 

engaged in providing residential and personal care services that include supervision, and 

assistance in daily living without on-site nursing care facilities; and 

  

WHEREAS, allowing assisted senior housing in the Downtown furthers BLCP – Housing 

Element Policy 4-3g which directs the City to, “[s]upport the development of a Downtown senior 

housing project to meet the unmet housing needs of Bonney Lake seniors;” and 

 

WHEREAS, the textual code amendments proposed by this Ordinance have been 

processed in according with the requirements of Chapter 43.21C RCW, the State Environmental 

Policy Act (SEPA); and  

 

WHEREAS, a determination of nonsignificance was issued on April 24, 2014 by the 

Community Development Director acting as the City SEPA Responsible Official, and the 

applicable SEPA comment and appeal periods concluded on May 15, 2014 and May 25, 2014 

respectively; and  

 

WHEREAS, the a copy of the this Ordinance was provided on April 22, 2014 to the 

Washington State Department of Commerce as required by RCW 36.70.A.106 and the City 

requested for expedited review was granted by the Department which closed the review and 

comment period on May 8, 2014;  

 

WHEREAS, notice of the public hearing was given to the public in accordance with law 

and a public hearing was held by the Planning Commission on May 21, 2014, and all persons 

wishing to be heard were heard. 

Agenda Packet p. 57 of 68



 

NOW, THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Bonney Lake do hereby ordain as follows: 

 

Section 1.  Section 18.08.020 of the Bonney Lake Municipal Code and the corresponding 

portions of Ordinance No. 1416 are hereby amended to read as follows: 

 

18.08.020 Land Use Matrix 

 

Zone Use 
RC-

5 

R-

1 

R-

2 

R-

3 

C-

1 

C-

2 

E MC DC DM PF 

Residential Uses 

Accessory dwelling unit 
  

P1 P1 
       

Adult family home P P P P P 
      

Apartments/condominiums 
   

P 
 

P2 P2 
 

P3 P 
 

Boarding homes 
  

P P 
      

P 

Duplexes (two-family residences) 
  

P P 
       

Family day cares A A A A A 
   

A A 
 

Group homes 
   

C 
      

C 

Home occupations; provided the 

criteria in BLMC 18.22.010 are 

met 

A A A A A 
   

A A 
 

Mobile/manufactured homes 

subject to Chapter 15.08 BLMC 
P P P 

        

Mobile/manufactured home parks 

in existence as of annexation into 

the city 
      

P 
    

Nursing homes and assisted living 

Continuing care communities 

(NAICS 623110 and NAICS 

623311) 

  
P P 

 
C P C 

  
C 

Senior assisted living facilities 

(NAICS 623312) 
  P P  C P C P3 P  

Private docks, mooring facilities 

and boathouses; provided the 

project complies with shoreline 

management regulations and the 

provisions of BLMC 18.22.070 

A A A A 
      

P 

Residences in connection with a 

business establishment     
P C A C P3 P 

 

Residential care facilities 
   

P 
       

Single-family residences, 

detached 
P P 

  
P 

      

Agenda Packet p. 58 of 68



Townhouses 
  

P P C C P C 
   

Educational Uses 

Colleges and universities or 

extension classrooms      
P P P P3 P P 

Dancing, music, art, drama and 

instructional/vocational schools     
P P P P P3 P P 

Elementary school 
 

C P P P C 
 

C 
  

P 

Junior high, high schools and 

junior colleges, public or private  
C C C C C 

 
C 

  
P 

Preschool 
 

C P P P P 
 

P 
   

Cultural, Religious, Recreational, and Entertainment Uses 

Adult entertainment facilities 

subject to the provisions of 

Chapter 18.32 BLMC 
      

P 
    

Amphitheater 
     

P P P 
   

Campgrounds 
      

P C 
  

C 

Essential public facilities 
      

P 
   

C 

Galleries 
    

P P 
 

P P P 
 

Golf courses C 
         

C 

Golf driving range 
      

P 
   

C 

Government buildings and 

facilities  
C C C P P P P P P P 

Gymnasiums and fitness centers, 

public or commercial      
P P P 

  
P 

Libraries 
   

P P P P P P P P 

Museums C C 
  

P P P P P P P 

Parks, open space and trails P P P P P P P P P P P 

Pocket park P P P P P P P P P P P 

Private meeting halls A A C P P P P P 
  

P 

Public meeting halls 
  

C P P P P P 
  

P 

Recreation facilities, outdoor C 
     

P 
   

P 

Recreational vehicle parks 
      

P 
    

Religious institutions P4 P4 P4 P4 P P 
 

P P3 P C 

Swimming pools, public or private A A A A A P P P 
  

P 

Theaters 
     

P P P P P 
 

Industrial Uses 

Assembly or processing of 

previously prepared materials in a 

fully enclosed building 
      

C1 
    

Agenda Packet p. 59 of 68



Junk, salvage or wrecking yard; 

provided a solid fence and/or solid 

screening hedge at least eight feet 

high is built and maintained to 

screen from view the open storage 

use. 

      
C 

    

On-site treatment and storage 

facility as an accessory use to a 

permitted use which generates a 

hazardous waste subject to 

compliance with the state siting 

criteria adopted pursuant to the 

requirements of Chapter 17.105 

RCW and issuance of state 

hazardous waste management 

facility permit 

     
A A 

    

Storage or distribution of sand, 

gravel, top soil, or bark; provided 

a solid fence and/or solid 

screening hedge at least eight feet 

high is built and maintained to 

screen from view the storage area 

      
P 

    

Storage or processing of any 

hazardous waste as defined in 

Chapter 70.105 RCW is not 

permitted as a principal use 

      
C 

    

Trailer-mix concrete plant; 

provided a solid fence and/or solid 

screening hedge at least eight feet 

high is built and maintained to 

screen from view the concrete 

plant and storage yard 

      
C 

    

Retail and wholesale warehousing 

and distribution of goods within a 

fully enclosed building 
     

P P P 
   

Resource Management Uses 

Agriculture and orchards P 
          

Forestry and tree farms P 
          

Raising of livestock, small 

animals and fowl; provided the 

requirements of BLMC 18.22.060 

are met 

P 
          

Transportation, Communication, Utilities 

Parking garages 
     

C P C C 
  

Agenda Packet p. 60 of 68



Public utility facility; provided the 

requirements of BLMC 18.22.050 

are met 

P 
 

P P P P P P 
   

Commercial Uses 

Ambulance service 
     

C P C 
   

Antique shops 
    

C P P P P P 
 

Arcade 
      

P P 
   

Automatic teller machines 

(ATMs)      
P P P 

 
P 

 

Automatic teller machines 

(ATMs) with no drive-through     
P P P P P P 

 

Automobile fuel and recharging 

stations and car washes      
P P P 

   

Automobile, boat and trailer sales 
      

P C 
   

Automobile, boat and trailer repair 
     

P P P 
   

Bakery, retail 
    

P P P P P P 
 

Bakery, wholesale 
      

P 
    

Banks, savings and loan 

associations      
P P P 

   

Banks, savings and loan 

associations with no drive-through     
P P P P P P 

 

Barber shops and beauty shops 
    

P P P P P P 
 

Bars 
    

C P P P P P 
 

Bed and breakfast houses; 

provided the criteria in BLMC 

18.22.030 are met 

A C C C P 
      

Beer and wine specialty shops 
    

P P P P P P 
 

Bookstores 
   

A P P P P P P 
 

Bowling alley 
           

Brewpubs and microbreweries 
    

C P P P P P 
 

Cabinet and carpenter shop 
     

C P C 
   

Candy shop 
    

P P P P 
   

Cart vendors 
    

P P P P 
   

Cinema 
     

P P P 
   

Coffee shops, cafes, no drive-

through     
P P P P P P A 

Coffee stand, drive-through 
     

P P P 
   

Agenda Packet p. 61 of 68



Commercial, professional and 

service uses associated with a 

residential complex, including 

banks, savings and loan 

associations, barber and beauty 

shops, business and professional 

offices, medical and dental clinics 

and neighborhood grocery, coffee 

shops, or restaurants, provided 

such uses occupy no more than 10 

percent of the land area of the 

parcel or parcels within the 

residential complex and no 

individual commercial, 

professional or service use 

exceeds 5,000 square feet of floor 

area 

   
A 

  
P 

    

Commercial uses associated with 

a permitted use, such as a snack 

bar or gift shop, provided the 

commercial activity is open for 

business no more than 150 days 

per year or is within the same 

building as the permitted use 

      
P 

   
A 

Contractor yards, provided a solid 

fence and/or solid screening hedge 

at least eight feet high is built and 

maintained to screen from view 

the open storage use 

      
P 

    

Day care centers 
   

C P P P P 
  

P 

Department store 
     

P P P 
   

Dry cleaning 
     

P P P P P 
 

Food markets, delicatessen and 

meat markets (beer and wine may 

be sold) 
    

P P P P P P 
 

Furniture and small household 

appliance repair shops     
C P P C 

   

Furniture building, repair and 

upholstering       
P 

    

Hardware stores 
     

P P P P P 
 

Horticultural nursery and garden 

supply, indoor or outdoor      
P P P P P 

 

Hospitals 
 

C C C 
 

P P P 
  

C 

Hotels, motels 
     

C P C P P 
 

Agenda Packet p. 62 of 68



Kennels C 
 

C C A A P A 
   

Laundromats 
    

P P P P 
   

Liquor stores 
    

C P P P 
   

Locksmiths and security alarm 

shops     
P P P P 

   

Machine shops 
     

C P C 
   

Massage therapy/spas 
    

P P P P P P 
 

Medical-dental clinics 
     

P P P P3 P 
 

Medical offices 
    

P P P P P3 P 
 

Mini day care center 
   

C P A P A P P 
 

Mini-storage facilities 
     

C C C 
   

Nail salons 
    

P P P P P P 
 

Nightclub 
      

P 
    

Open storage yards, including 

storage and sale of building 

materials and heavy equipment, 

provided a solid fence and/or solid 

screening hedge at least eight feet 

high is built and maintained to 

screen from view the open storage 

use 

      
P 

    

Outdoor storage and sale of 

building materials and nursery 

stock, provided such use is 

accessory to a permitted use and 

enclosed within a sight-obscuring 

fence 

     
A A A 

   

Pet shop, grooming and supplies 
    

P P P P P P 
 

Pharmacies 
     

P P P P P 
 

Photographic processing and 

supply      
P P P P P 

 

Photography studios 
    

P P P P P P 
 

Plumbing shops, electricians, 

heating, air conditioning sales or 

repair 
     

C P C 
   

Pool hall 
     

P P P 
   

Printing, copying and mailing 

services     
P P P P P P 

 

Professional offices 
    

P P P P P3 P 
 

Restaurants, including drive-in 

restaurants     
C P P P 

   

Restaurants, no drive-through 
    

C P P P P P 
 

Agenda Packet p. 63 of 68



Retail shops 
    

C P P P P P 
 

Roadside produce stands P 
   

P P P P 
  

P 

Shoe repair 
    

P P P P P P 
 

Shopping center 
     

P P P 
   

Skating rink 
     

P P P 
   

Stables and riding schools P 
         

P 

Tailor shops 
    

P P P P P P 
 

Tanning salon 
    

P P P P P P 
 

Tavern 
    

C P P P P P 
 

Veterinary clinics, animal 

hospitals      
P P P 

   

Veterinary clinics with no outdoor 

kennel space or dog runs      
P P P P3 P 

 

Wireless communications 

facilities are permitted as principal 

or accessory uses provided the 

requirements of Chapter 18.50 

BLMC are met 

P 
 

P P A A P A 
   

P = Permitted 

C = Conditional use 

A = Accessory use 

P1 = No accessory dwelling units are allowed in conjunction with a duplex 

P2 = Subject to the commercial design standards of Chapter 18.31 BLMC 

P3 = Allowed outright on second floor, requires a CUP if on the first floor 

P4 = Subject to the provisions of BLMC 18.22.040 

C1 = Exclusions are listed in BLMC 18.29.040 

 

 Section 2. This ordinance shall take effect five (5) days after its passage, approval, and 

publication as required by law.   

PASSED by the City Council and approved by the Mayor this _______ day of 

________________________, 2014. 

 

      

Neil Johnson, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

      

Agenda Packet p. 64 of 68



Harwood T. Edvalson, CMC, City Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

      

Kathleen Haggard, City Attorney 

 

Passed: 

Valid: 

Published: 

Effective Date: 

Agenda Packet p. 65 of 68



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

 

 

Agenda Packet p. 66 of 68



 

� Page 1 

Memo 
Date : May 21, 2014 

To : Mayor and City Council 

From : Grant Sulham, Planning Commission Chair    

Re : Ordinance D14-59 – Land Use Matrix and Senior Housing 

The current land use matrix codified in Bonney Lake Municipal Code (BLMC) 18.08.020 currently 

combines nursing homes and assisted living facilities as one use. While the uses have similarities, the 

uses also have some differences related to the type of care and the amount of nursing care provided 

within the facility as described below: 

 

Nursing Facilities are defined, in the North American Industry Classification System 

(NAICS) Industry classification 623110 as establishments primarily engaged in providing 

inpatient nursing, personal care, and rehabilitative services for an extended period of time to 

individuals requiring nursing care by a permanent core staff of registered or licensed practical 

nurses; and 

 

Continuing Care Communities are defined, in NAICS Industry classification 623311, as 

establishments primarily engaged in providing a range of residential settings with meals, 

housekeeping, social, leisure, and other services available to assist residents in daily living 

with on-site nursing care facilities; and 

 

Assisted Living Facilities are defined, in NAICS Industry classification 623312, as 

establishments primarily engaged in providing residential and personal care services that 

include supervision, and assistance in daily living without on-site nursing care facilities. 

 

None of these uses are allowed within the Downtown which is inconsistent with the Bonney Lake 

Comprehensive Plan – Housing Element Policy 4-3g which directs the City to, “[s]upport the 

development of a Downtown senior housing project to meet the unmet housing needs of Bonney Lake 

seniors.   

 

The proposed amendment would separate Assisted Living Facilities from Continuing Care 

Communities and Nursing Homes on the Land Use Matrix and allow Assisted Living Facilities within 

the Downtown Commercial and Downtown Mixed Use zoning classifications.  This amendment 

would ensure consistency between the City’s development regulations codified the BLMC and the 

housing policies adopted in the BLCP.  The Revised Code of Washington (RCW) 36.70A.130(1)(d) 

and Washington Administrative Code (WAC) 365-196-500(3) both require that the City’s 

comprehensive plan and the implementing development regulations are consistent.  The proposed 

Planning Commission 

 

Agenda Packet p. 67 of 68



 

� Page 2 

amendments would remove the inconsistency between the documents and bring the City into 

compliance with state law. 

 

On May 21, 2014, the Planning Commission held a public hearing on Ordinance D14-59 which 

amendments the portion of the Land Use Matrix related to assisted living facilities and nursing 

facilities and voted 6-0-0 to recommend that the City Council approve Ordinance D14-59. 

Agenda Packet p. 68 of 68


	2014-06-10_CouncilMeetingAgenda
	CITY COUNCIL MEETING
	AGENDA
	City of
	“Where Dreams Can Soar”


	A. Flag Salute
	B. Roll Call: Mayor Neil Johnson, Jr., Deputy Mayor Dan Swatman, Councilmember Mark Hamilton, Councilmember Donn Lewis, Councilmember Randy McKibbin, Councilmember Katrina Minton-Davis, Councilmember James Rackley, and Councilmember Tom Watson.
	C. Announcements, Appointments and Presentations:
	1. Announcements: None.
	2. Appointments: None.
	3. Presentations: None.
	D. Agenda Modifications

	IV.A. 2014-05-20_CouncilWorkshopMinutes
	CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP
	MINUTES
	City of
	“Where Dreams Can Soar”


	Blank Page

	IV.A. 2014-05-27_CouncilMeetingMinutes
	CITY COUNCIL MEETING
	MINUTES
	City of
	“Where Dreams Can Soar”


	Blank Page

	IV.C. AB14-76 Res 2390 Church Lk Rd Staking
	Resolution 2390 PSA Pmtrx Church Lake Road Overlay
	Personal Sevices Agreement
	Scope of work
	Map Church Lake Road Overlay
	ADP2FE6.tmp
	BUDGET INFORMATION
	Budget Balance
	Required Expenditure
	Current Balance
	Budget Amount

	Blank Page

	IV.D. AB14-77 PH 6-Year TIP
	01_AB14-77 Motion to Set Public Hearing 6 Yr TIP
	02_Res 2391 Approval of the 6 year TIP 2015-2020
	03_TIP
	6_yr_tip_map1_may28_2014
	6_yr_tip_map2_may29_2014
	6_yr_tip_map3_may28_2014
	6_yr_tip_map4_may29_2014
	6_yr_tip_map5_may28_2014
	6_yr_tip_map6_may28_2014
	6_yr_tip_map7_may28_2014
	6_yr_tip_map8_may28_2014
	6_yr_tip_map9_may28_2014
	07_eastown_public_roads_tip_may28_2014
	08_2014-05-21 Base Map - victor_falls_springs_20MAY2014
	09_fennel_creek_tip_map_july22_2013 (2)
	10_willowbrook_to_victor_falls_trail_may29_2014
	Blank Page

	IX. AB14-59 Ord D14-59 Senior Housing



